
 

Deputy Chief Constable 

Monday 28th March 2022 

Dear Mr Simpson, 

Sussex Police Response to Regulation 28 issues arising from the death of Jack Taylor 

Thank you for including us within the scope of this notice. I welcome it as it is vital that Sussex Police, 
and indeed all public authorities, learn from incidents such as this and strive to improve where 
necessary.  

I will deal with your concerns sequentially: 

1. S18 Mental Health Act 1983 Powers & Mill View Hospital

This relates to our partners at Sussex Partnership Foundation Trust (SPFT) and therefore we are 
unable to comment on it. In the work we have completed in response to your concerns, we have 
worked closely with our SPFT partners and are advised that they will, of course, be addressing this in 
their response to you.  

2. The joint Sussex Partnership Foundation Trust & Sussex Police ‘Absence Without Leave (AWOL)

Policy.

We have collaborated with our partners at SPFT to provide a joint response to this concern. 

A working group was established with healthcare professionals from Mill View Hospital and officers 
and staff from Sussex Police with the remit of exploring what can be done to improve our approach 
to jointly responding to incidents of patients who are absent without leave. 

Through discussion, the working group are proposing several solutions to the problems identified 

and are working towards implementing these jointly. These solutions include: 

Developing a Missing Persons Template (including an action plan) 

To improve information flow and joint assessment of risk, work has commenced on co-developing a 

‘Missing Persons Template’ that can be used by hospital staff to share all relevant information about 

a potential missing person with Sussex Police in a timely manner. A literature review has been 

undertaken to identify how other localities implement such templates and this will be used to 

complete a first draft of the template in April 2022.  
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Work will take place to move towards having a final draft in May 2022, when the completed 

template and accompanying protocol surrounding it will them be embedded into the multi-agency 

Absence Without Leave (AWOL) policy which is currently subject to multi-agency review and revision.  

 

The multi-agency review and revision is overseen by SPFT's Mental Health and Mental Capacity Acts 

Committee and the Mental Health Portfolio within Sussex Police who will collectively have 

responsibility for ensuring timescales are adhered to and changes are successfully implemented. 

 

Additionally, to improve information flow and the overall response to missing persons, it was agreed 

that work would commence on co-developing a joint missing persons action plan that can be used so 

both agencies can agree actions and tasks in relation to finding a missing person proportionate to the 

presenting risks.  

 

The joint action plan will be developed alongside the missing persons template with a first draft 

being ready in April 2022. We will ensure that this is embedded into the new AWOL Policy and 

practice with it being anticipated that this will be completed by May 2022. 

 

 

Proactive approach to managing Missing Patients 
Work has been identified to improve how both Sussex Police and SPFT take a more proactive 
approach to managing patients who could go missing. 
 
SPFT will invite Sussex Police’s Missing Person Team to proactively meet to discuss patients who can 

present with a heightened risk of going missing or becoming absent without leave.  

 

This approach is likely to be embedded into the revised AWOL Policy, however this practice will be 

adopted immediately by Mill View Hospital and the Brighton Missing Persons Team. 

 

These proposed changes, which currently focus on the Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit at Mill View 
Hospital, will work towards improving joint working and developing an improved joint response to 
people who go missing from healthcare facilities operated by SPFT.  

 

3. Sussex Police’s use of their Missing Persons Policy 

To further assist with addressing your concerns, a working group was formed consisting of the 
relevant departments. The purpose of this group is to review, and where required, update, our 
current working practices. The group includes representatives from the Sussex Police Missing 
Persons team, the Response teams and the Force Contact, Command and Control department 
(FCCCD).  
 
Following a detailed review by this working group, five areas were identified for further work and 
changes to ensure improvements are made. I outline these below: 
 

3.1 – Escalation if resources prevent allocation within 2 hours 

Where a medium risk missing person report has not had a named officer assigned to progress the 
investigation within two hours of the report being received, FCCCD will now escalate it to the 
Divisional Critical Incident Inspector (referred to as Golf 99 – ‘G99’). If that Inspector is unable to 
identify a suitable resource, it will be escalated to the relevant Critical Incident Manager (‘CIM’).  



 
The primary responsibility for resourcing incidents will continue to sit with FCCCD, however 
bringing in this contingency allows greater oversight by G99, and the CIM will be able to assist with 
re-deployment of resources from other Divisions if it cannot be resourced locally.  
 
This has been introduced already.  

 

3.2 Actions when location becomes known  

 

When information is received relating to the location of a missing person and attendance by an 

officer is necessary, an officer will be assigned to that location in line with the threat, harm and 

risk presented.  

 

The officer in command of the missing person investigation will now also be notified.  This will 

ensure that if the location is in another Division, as was the case with Mr Taylor, the officer in 

command can liaise directly with colleagues in other policing areas to seek resource support if 

needed. If no named officer has been assigned by that time, it is to be escalated to G99, and if 

necessary, the CIM, to progress.  

 

This change, and that outlined in 3.1 above, will also be written into policy, which is currently 

under review. We anticipate it being signed-off and update within the next two months.  

 

3.3 Support to Sergeants in command of medium risk missing persons from mental health 

facilities outside of the Missing Person Team working hours  

 

Consideration has been given to whether command responsibility should be transferred to the 

Divisional Inspector, rather than remain at Sergeant level. However, the demand on the 

Inspector that this would generate could result in oversight actually being lost rather than 

improved, so the responsibility will remain at Sergeant level.  

The Duty Inspector will now instead support sergeants who have command of medium risk 

persons reported missing from mental health facilities by reviewing threat assessments and the 

quality and sufficiency of lines of enquiry that are set. This will be done as a dip-check, with 

random sampling to ensure consistency and quality.  

 

Further, it is recognised that people who are subject to formal assessment and/or treatment 

under the Mental Health Act could be more vulnerable than other missing people in the 

‘medium risk’ category. There is also more likely to be information and intelligence relating to 

the person held by others outside of Sussex Police, the obtaining and assessment of which are 

key to ensure our response is proportionate & necessary.  

Training will be provided to develop their skills and understanding in these areas (detailed in 

3.5 below).  

 

3.4 Missing Person Team Terms of Reference to be reviewed 

The terms of reference to which the missing person team works is to be reviewed by the Force 

‘Missing Persons Working Group’.  

 

It is intended that this review will enhance the support that the missing person team already 

provides to the initial response phase of a missing person investigation.  
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The team has specialist expertise and effective working relationships with many of our 

partners, providing real benefit to investigations. However, as a small team, cover is not 24/7 

so it would not be possible for the team to take on all investigations from first report. The 

review will consider what, if any, enhancements can be made to assist their colleagues.  

We anticipate this review will be completed and presented to our Vulnerability Board in April 

2022 and any changes that result will take effect immediately.  

 

 
3.5 Training provided to Sergeants  

The existing training that is currently provided to Sergeants who oversee missing person 

investigations will be reviewed by our Learning & Professional Development Team, who are 

responsible for preparing and delivering training.  

Current training includes the function of command, assessing threat, risk & harm, setting and 

monitoring of proportionate lines of enquiry and handover processes.  

We intend to include now additionally obtaining and assessing information & intelligence (as 

referred to in 3.3 above).  

Where the training can be enhanced, additional formal training and/or Continued Professional 

Development will be introduced.  

 

We anticipate this review to be completed by the end of April 2022. Any additions to training 

programmes can take some time to implement due to re-writing of and building into existing 

training cycles. Accepting this, we will be communicating internally about many of these 

aspects as soon as possible, and whilst not as comprehensive as structured training, it will 

provide an overview and guidance prior to formal training roll-out.  

 
We have worked hard both internally and with our partners to ensure that we are able to provide a 
comprehensive and constructive response. We hope you find this to be the case.  
 
As some of the work and changes highlighted above are still in progress, we will be happy to provide 
you with a further update of our progress in six months, should you find that to be useful.  
 
If there are any follow-up questions about this response, please do come back to me and I will do my 
best to resolve them.  
Yours Sincerely,  

 
A/Chief Constable  

 

 




